

**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### **Contents**

President's Message 1
Suzanne Stengl
Book Talk 1
Sherile Reilly
OWL 2
S. Stengl with D. Colpitts
Riddle Me This 3
Suzanne Stengler
Writing by Voice 3
Fiona Pinnell
Punctuation Pitfall 3
Penny Grey
Cool Websites 3
Pauline Lindland 4
Various Authors
Writing Tight 4
Penny Grey
Lanny Fritz 5
Various Authors
Program Schedule 6

# **President's Message**

by Suzanne Stengl

Our membership stats are coming in. We seem to be evenly distributed, with the membership composed of 10 of the original charter members, 10 members who joined last year, and 11 brand new members. We will not be accepting new members again until next September. If you have interested friends, send their e-mail to Donna Tunney,

mysterywritersink@hotmail.com, and she will put them on the list for a fan-out next August. And, of course, past members and published authors may join at any time.

Our fall has been entertaining and educational. Louise Behiel from CARWA gave us an inspiring motivational talk at our opening meeting. In October, Pauline Lindland introduced us to the world of Art Fraud. In November, we heard from Lanny Fritz, Manager of Securities at U of C, and we learned about the challenges and intricacies of supervising a university campus. We were also delighted to hear some of the anecdotes from Lanny's long policing career.

Our very own member, Mahrie Glab, a teacher of mystery writing, has agreed to do a Thursday night presentation for us. Be sure to check out our Program Schedule on the back page. As we get things confirmed, we'll keep you up to date with fanouts.

Our New Membership

Orientation is coming up and everyone is welcome, old and new members alike. Come and get to know each other over coffee and dessert.

I wish you all a happy and safe Christmas season, and all the best in the New Year!

#### **Book Talk**

by Sherile Reilly

Scene of the Crime: a writer's guide to crime scene investigations, by Anne Wingate, Ph.D., is another book in The HowDunit Series. The reader is taken step by step through the crime scene. We learn everything from who gets the first call, how to work with fingerprints, identifying human remains, and the autopsy, to inside the crime lab. The final chapter, "The Unofficial Investigator," tells how private detectives, reporters, and amateur sleuths overcome obstacles that official investigators don't face. This is a must read for writers. Call (403) 286-6266 to borrow any book from the MWI Library.

"Once in a while it really hits people that they don't have to experience the world in the way they have been told to."

Alan Keightley



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

# On-Line Writers League (OWL)

by Suzanne Stengl with David Colpitts

Having trouble setting goals for yourself? Is it an effort to sit down at that computer every day? Is writing just too lonely a pursuit?

You might want to try OWL. We are a group of writers who post our goals online every Sunday. And then as the week rolls along, we report our progress to the group.

Your goal can be big: "I'll write 25 pages this week," or you can have a beginner goal: "I'll sit down at the keyboard for 30 minutes every day and I will write Something." Your goals need to be Specific, Measurable, and Doable.

Besides setting goals and reporting in each day, we "talk" about the craft of writing: how we plot, how we invent characters. We talk about what motivates us to write and how our career plans are evolving. And we talk about what keeps us from writing—what our "displacement activities" are and how we might avoid them.

And sometimes we just have fun.

Suzanne has an item on her Career Plan that says "Have eight proposals out there." That doesn't mean eight manuscripts. It just means she plans to send a query with a short synopsis to eight different publishers. So far she's got three out there, except that one just came back. Rejected.

Suzanne is getting lots of experience with rejection. So in an effort to be objective about it, she organized a little chart to rate rejection letters:

Level one: This is addressed to dear writer. It may or may not be signed, but if it is signed, it's from "The Editorial Dept."

Level two: This type of rejection actually has your name on it and is signed by the person you sent it to. It comes with a generic response, such as "Unfortunately the novel does not look right for me at this time."

Level three: This rejection not only has your name on it, but some criticism like "Your motivation is thin," or "Your characters are not believable."

OWL members offer sympathy and encouragement when you get a Rejection. The day following Suzanne's "Rejection Post." David had this to say: My first use of the word "rejected" referred to my premarried days and asking for a date:

Level one: Her nose rises 17 vertical degrees, her eyes look me up and down, a disdainful look comes over her face. May be accompanied by "You gotta be kidding." She then turns to her girl friend, giggles and points, "Guess who just asked me out."

Level two: "No." She then turns to her girl friend and begins talking animatedly, pointedly ignoring me.

Level three: "No, thanks."

Often accompanied by a slight smile and an explanation, such as, "I've got do to my nails on Saturday night," or "Doing my hair on Saturday night is more important than a dinner date at the most expensive restaurant you could afford," or "My fiance, who is a WWF star, is coming back on Saturday."

Level four: "How nice of you to ask. Unfortunately I am tied up then. A raincheck perhaps?"

If you keep at it, someday someone will say "yes."

If you would like to join OWL, send an email to Suzanne, at suzanne.stengl@shaw.ca, or Donna, at dtunney@shaw.ca.



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### Riddle Me This!

by Suzanne Stengl

When posed this riddle, 80% of kindergarten kids figured out the answer, compared to 17% of Standford University seniors:

What is greater than God, More evil than the devil, The poor have it, The rich need it, And if you eat it, you'll die?

Answer: Nothing.

# **Writing by Voice**

by Fiona Pinnell

Due to a boring old hand injury, I have been using speech recognition software (SRT) for the past nine months. My experiences are solely with *Dragon*NaturallySpeaking, although apparently ViaVoice is similar in accuracy and usage.

With SRT, a writer performs standard word processing commands. I enter text, edit, capitalize, italicize, cut, paste, and correct spelling errors by voice. I can also negotiate drop-down menus, save files, and navigate a document hands-free. With SRT

software, I surf the Web and compose e-mail using voice commands.

SRT requires a new user to train the speech engine to recognize her voice by reading a text out loud for approximately 20 minutes. After the training session, my dictation was 80% accurate. Training the speech engine becomes an ongoing and seamless part of using SRT, and accuracy improved to 90%–95% after I used *NaturallySpeaking* for 20 days.

Something I enjoy about using SRT is that my eyes are no longer glued to the computer screen. For example, as I am dictating this text I am gazing out my window. Today's view offers an early taste of autumn as the yellowing leaves of the weeping willow flutter in the wind. Alternatively, I can study some visuals I use when writing my mystery novel: hand-drawn maps of a fictional town I've created or newspaper photos that have inspired characters.

Although I found learning SRT challenging at first, I would recommend it for

anyone who suffers from eye strain or overuse injuries. For more information, check out www.ScanSoft.com.

# **Punctuation Pitfall**

by Penny Grey

Though editors disagree on the need for the final comma in separating the penultimate from the last item in a series, the "serial comma" precludes any possibility of confusion on the part of readers.

Contributors to this newsletter include Fiona, Brenda and Suzanne and David.

Contributors to this newsletter include Fiona, Brenda and Suzanne, and David.

Contributors to this newsletter include Fiona, Brenda, and Suzanne and David.

# Cool Websites for Writers

Fiona Pinnell recommends wordsmith.org, where you can sign up to receive a new word and its meaning each day by e-mail.

Penny Grey likes wordorigins.org, where you can learn the source of all those crazy expressions or unusual words.



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### **Presentation Review**

Pauline Lindland, Art Fraud Lady, spoke to MWI October 9, 2003.

According to ex-corporate curator Pauline Lindland, the easiest painting to steal hangs in an office building. Most of this art is not attached with security hooks, and much of it is small enough to fit into a briefcase. Don't worry about smuggling it across international borders, either. Since a 1970 art-protection treaty was signed, only five countries (Canada is one) have established necessary legislation. None have trained customs officers to distinguish a faked provenance—a documentary history of the painting up to and including your bill of sale—from an authentic one. She made it sound so EASY!" Jayne Barnard

I expected Pauline to cover international art thieves using uber-technology to slip into a museum under cover of darkness to steal a priceless painting. But where there are wealthy people who want to own great art, like in Calgary, there are targets for fraud. And these victims are not "stupid people." It's not like

trying to sell the Mona Lisa while it's still hanging in the Louvre. The most likely forgeries are contemporary works with values as small as \$10,000. Pauline's advice is, if you are planning on buying artwork of any significant value, do your homework or bring along an expert before laying out the money. *Brenda Collins* 

Pauline stated the most serious art fraud involves cultural objects that are "stolen" from third-world countries and purchased by European museums, the biggest culprits being France, Great Britain, and Germany. Apparently, Canada is one of only five countries attempting to return said objects in their possession to the countries of origin. This struck me as a bit odd. If you checked out the Royal Ontario Museum lately, you'd have found it has a heck of a lot of Egyptian, European, and South American artifacts on permanent display. So what exactly are they planning to give back? Janet Hunter

Pauline advised that a work of art be authenticated, and told us that you can pay to have

the Canadian Conservation Institute in Ottawa do a pigment analysis on a painting, which will tell you if it was painted when it was supposed to have been. If found to be a forgery, you may find yourself helping the RCMP set up a sting to catch the crook. Pauline also clarified the difference between a print, which is something the artist does; a reproduction, which is mechanically made; and a copy, which is done as the original artist did it, for example, using oil paint. Nina Evashkevich

# **Writing Tight**

by Penny Grey

Writers agree that it's harder to write few good words than to write many bad ones. When it's time to prune, William Brohaugh (Write Tight) identifies 16 types of "wordweeds" to look for: the redundant; the already understood; the empty; the evasive (intentional or otherwise); the passive; the weak, the noncommittal, and the hesitant; the affected; the circuitous; the self-indulgent; the overkill: the inflated and the deflated; the invisible and therefore unnecessary; the imprecise; the clever and the show-offy; the nonsensical; the beautiful. So, get pruning!



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### **Presentation Review**

Lanny Fritz, University of Calgary Security and Safety Sheriff, spoke to MWI November 6, 2003.

Lanny Fritz says his 29 years on the Calgary police force was an eye-opener for a boy who grew up in small-town Saskatchewan. He joined the force in 1969, at 19 years old, and began by walking the beat. He then spent two years in a patrol car, moved on to more serious details from there, and later worked in race relations. In Lanny's day, the force hired youths and moulded them to the profession. Today, new recruits average 26 years of age and come from such backgrounds as science, teaching, and construction, making today's force, Lanny believes, better equipped to serve a diverse society. Susan Calder Arnold

In today's digital revolution, don't expect your perp to get away with murder simply by stealing surveillance videotape. Most modern security systems now use DVRs (digital video recorders), like those at the University of Calgary. At the U of C, the system is monitored by an officer 24 hours a day, and even if your perp could smoke him out, drug him, or otherwise "eliminate" him, there is no tape to steal, erase, or burn. As writers, we must be a bit more creative in foiling modern surveillance systems. Pamela McDowell

Lanny Fritz started out as a beat cop, before radios, and remembers having to call in using a call box, so his experience as a police officer and with University security was both wide ranging and informative. One thing I learned was that confidential informants are registered within the unit, to prevent them from playing both sides. Another was that digital security cameras are now being used, so adding a loop to cover covert activity is not possible. Finally, I learned that G-8 agitators were kept in line with counter-agitators who were really policemen a great idea that worked. Grace Panko

A cold Thursday night and the last thing I felt like doing was going to a meeting, but the Ink guest speaker made me

glad I had ventured out. Mr. Fritz surprised me—he both entertained and educated me. And most of all, he impressed me with his commitment to his profession, his generous attitude toward people, his loyalty to Calgarians, and his treasure trove of experiences. Like so many people who have lived life to the fullest, he had great stories to share. It's always a treat to listen to a speaker who so obviously loves what he does.

Fiona Pinnell

Lanny Fritz, University of Calgary's Security and Safety Sheriff started out walking "the beat" of downtown Calgary in 1969. He's experienced the many facets of policing, including being part of the Race Relations Unit, the Integrated Intelligence Unit policing the trucking industry, as well as Criminal Intelligence prior to and during the 1988 Olympics in Calgary. Since his current expertise is now security, his advice on mounting covert cameras in a sprinkler head or air intake vent was well received.

Bernie Visotto



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### **Mystery Writers Ink Society**

223 - 12th Avenue SW Calgary, Alberta T2R 0G9 Canada

#### **Mission Statement**

Mystery Writers Ink shall support writers of mystery fiction by providing networking opportunities and by educating and informing writers about writing techniques, publishing, and marketing.

### Newsletter Submissions

Mystery Press is published quarterly, in September, December, March, and June. Original material only please. Articles may not be reprinted without permission of the authors. MWI reserves the right to edit submissions.

The deadline for the March newsletter is Feb. 20, 2004.

Please send requests for guidelines, as well as submissions, to Penny Grey at pegrey@greygroup.ca.

### **Program Schedule**

#### **Thursday, Dec. 11, 2003**

Old Y Centre 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. New Member Orientation Topics: Manuscript format, the query letter, the synopsis. Coffee and dessert. Everyone is welcome!

### Thursday, Jan. 8, 2004

Old Y Centre 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Topic: An ex-RCMP officer talks about past cases.

### Other Thursdays in 2004

Old Y Centre 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Topics:

- \* Unravelling the Mystery: presentation by Mahrie Glab, who teaches writing workshops in Edmonton.
- \* A Calgary Police Services presentation.

### Lug a Mug

We don't have a storage area at our meeting place, so please bring your own coffee cup.
Styrofoam cups are available to the forgetful!

Enjoy a bottomless cup of coffee for only 25 cents!

#### **Mystery Writers Ink Society**

#### 2003-2004 Board of Directors:

President Suzanne Stengl
Vice President Cathy Welburn
Secretary Sherry McEwen
Treasurer Donna Wickens
Membership Janet Hunter
Facilities Mgmt Anne Jayne
Library Sherile Reilly
Program Sherile Reilly
Public Relations Donna Tunney

#### **Newsletter:**

Editor Penny Grey
Layout/Design Penny Grey
Distribution Sharon Wildwind
Database Mgr Brenda Collins

#### Memberships:

Memberships are accepted between Sept 1 and Oct 31 of each year.

Published authors and past members may join at any time.

#### Full membership:

\$35, which includes newsletter

#### Associate membership:

\$45, which includes newsletter

**Newsletter only:** \$10

#### **Got Questions?**

Drop us a line:

mysterywritersink@hotmail.com



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### **Contents**

President's Message 1
Suzanne Stengl
Book Talk 1
Sherile Reilly
OWL 2
S. Stengl with D. Colpitts
Riddle Me This 3
Suzanne Stengler
Writing by Voice 3
Fiona Pinnell
Punctuation Pitfall 3
Penny Grey
Cool Websites 3
Pauline Lindland 4
Various Authors
Writing Tight 4
Penny Grey
Lanny Fritz 5
Various Authors
Program Schedule 6

# **President's Message**

by Suzanne Stengl

Our membership stats are coming in. We seem to be evenly distributed, with the membership composed of 10 of the original charter members, 10 members who joined last year, and 11 brand new members. We will not be accepting new members again until next September. If you have interested friends, send their e-mail to Donna Tunney,

mysterywritersink@hotmail.com, and she will put them on the list for a fan-out next August. And, of course, past members and published authors may join at any time.

Our fall has been entertaining and educational. Louise Behiel from CARWA gave us an inspiring motivational talk at our opening meeting. In October, Pauline Lindland introduced us to the world of Art Fraud. In November, we heard from Lanny Fritz, Manager of Securities at U of C, and we learned about the challenges and intricacies of supervising a university campus. We were also delighted to hear some of the anecdotes from Lanny's long policing career.

Our very own member, Mahrie Glab, a teacher of mystery writing, has agreed to do a Thursday night presentation for us. Be sure to check out our Program Schedule on the back page. As we get things confirmed, we'll keep you up to date with fanouts.

Our New Membership

Orientation is coming up and everyone is welcome, old and new members alike. Come and get to know each other over coffee and dessert.

I wish you all a happy and safe Christmas season, and all the best in the New Year!

#### **Book Talk**

by Sherile Reilly

Scene of the Crime: a writer's guide to crime scene investigations, by Anne Wingate, Ph.D., is another book in The HowDunit Series. The reader is taken step by step through the crime scene. We learn everything from who gets the first call, how to work with fingerprints, identifying human remains, and the autopsy, to inside the crime lab. The final chapter, "The Unofficial Investigator," tells how private detectives, reporters, and amateur sleuths overcome obstacles that official investigators don't face. This is a must read for writers. Call (403) 286-6266 to borrow any book from the MWI Library.

"Once in a while it really hits people that they don't have to experience the world in the way they have been told to."

Alan Keightley



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

# On-Line Writers League (OWL)

by Suzanne Stengl with David Colpitts

Having trouble setting goals for yourself? Is it an effort to sit down at that computer every day? Is writing just too lonely a pursuit?

You might want to try OWL. We are a group of writers who post our goals online every Sunday. And then as the week rolls along, we report our progress to the group.

Your goal can be big: "I'll write 25 pages this week," or you can have a beginner goal: "I'll sit down at the keyboard for 30 minutes every day and I will write Something." Your goals need to be Specific, Measurable, and Doable.

Besides setting goals and reporting in each day, we "talk" about the craft of writing: how we plot, how we invent characters. We talk about what motivates us to write and how our career plans are evolving. And we talk about what keeps us from writing—what our "displacement activities" are and how we might avoid them.

And sometimes we just have fun.

Suzanne has an item on her Career Plan that says "Have eight proposals out there." That doesn't mean eight manuscripts. It just means she plans to send a query with a short synopsis to eight different publishers. So far she's got three out there, except that one just came back. Rejected.

Suzanne is getting lots of experience with rejection. So in an effort to be objective about it, she organized a little chart to rate rejection letters:

Level one: This is addressed to dear writer. It may or may not be signed, but if it is signed, it's from "The Editorial Dept."

Level two: This type of rejection actually has your name on it and is signed by the person you sent it to. It comes with a generic response, such as "Unfortunately the novel does not look right for me at this time."

Level three: This rejection not only has your name on it, but some criticism like "Your motivation is thin," or "Your characters are not believable."

OWL members offer sympathy and encouragement when you get a Rejection. The day following Suzanne's "Rejection Post." David had this to say: My first use of the word "rejected" referred to my premarried days and asking for a date:

Level one: Her nose rises 17 vertical degrees, her eyes look me up and down, a disdainful look comes over her face. May be accompanied by "You gotta be kidding." She then turns to her girl friend, giggles and points, "Guess who just asked me out."

Level two: "No." She then turns to her girl friend and begins talking animatedly, pointedly ignoring me.

Level three: "No, thanks."

Often accompanied by a slight smile and an explanation, such as, "I've got do to my nails on Saturday night," or "Doing my hair on Saturday night is more important than a dinner date at the most expensive restaurant you could afford," or "My fiance, who is a WWF star, is coming back on Saturday."

Level four: "How nice of you to ask. Unfortunately I am tied up then. A raincheck perhaps?"

If you keep at it, someday someone will say "yes."

If you would like to join OWL, send an email to Suzanne, at suzanne.stengl@shaw.ca, or Donna, at dtunney@shaw.ca.



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### Riddle Me This!

by Suzanne Stengl

When posed this riddle, 80% of kindergarten kids figured out the answer, compared to 17% of Standford University seniors:

What is greater than God, More evil than the devil, The poor have it, The rich need it, And if you eat it, you'll die?

Answer: Nothing.

# **Writing by Voice**

by Fiona Pinnell

Due to a boring old hand injury, I have been using speech recognition software (SRT) for the past nine months. My experiences are solely with *Dragon*NaturallySpeaking, although apparently ViaVoice is similar in accuracy and usage.

With SRT, a writer performs standard word processing commands. I enter text, edit, capitalize, italicize, cut, paste, and correct spelling errors by voice. I can also negotiate drop-down menus, save files, and navigate a document hands-free. With SRT

software, I surf the Web and compose e-mail using voice commands.

SRT requires a new user to train the speech engine to recognize her voice by reading a text out loud for approximately 20 minutes. After the training session, my dictation was 80% accurate. Training the speech engine becomes an ongoing and seamless part of using SRT, and accuracy improved to 90%–95% after I used *NaturallySpeaking* for 20 days.

Something I enjoy about using SRT is that my eyes are no longer glued to the computer screen. For example, as I am dictating this text I am gazing out my window. Today's view offers an early taste of autumn as the yellowing leaves of the weeping willow flutter in the wind. Alternatively, I can study some visuals I use when writing my mystery novel: hand-drawn maps of a fictional town I've created or newspaper photos that have inspired characters.

Although I found learning SRT challenging at first, I would recommend it for

anyone who suffers from eye strain or overuse injuries. For more information, check out www.ScanSoft.com.

# **Punctuation Pitfall**

by Penny Grey

Though editors disagree on the need for the final comma in separating the penultimate from the last item in a series, the "serial comma" precludes any possibility of confusion on the part of readers.

Contributors to this newsletter include Fiona, Brenda and Suzanne and David.

Contributors to this newsletter include Fiona, Brenda and Suzanne, and David.

Contributors to this newsletter include Fiona, Brenda, and Suzanne and David.

# Cool Websites for Writers

Fiona Pinnell recommends wordsmith.org, where you can sign up to receive a new word and its meaning each day by e-mail.

Penny Grey likes wordorigins.org, where you can learn the source of all those crazy expressions or unusual words.



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### **Presentation Review**

Pauline Lindland, Art Fraud Lady, spoke to MWI October 9, 2003.

According to ex-corporate curator Pauline Lindland, the easiest painting to steal hangs in an office building. Most of this art is not attached with security hooks, and much of it is small enough to fit into a briefcase. Don't worry about smuggling it across international borders, either. Since a 1970 art-protection treaty was signed, only five countries (Canada is one) have established necessary legislation. None have trained customs officers to distinguish a faked provenance—a documentary history of the painting up to and including your bill of sale—from an authentic one. She made it sound so EASY!" Jayne Barnard

I expected Pauline to cover international art thieves using uber-technology to slip into a museum under cover of darkness to steal a priceless painting. But where there are wealthy people who want to own great art, like in Calgary, there are targets for fraud. And these victims are not "stupid people." It's not like

trying to sell the Mona Lisa while it's still hanging in the Louvre. The most likely forgeries are contemporary works with values as small as \$10,000. Pauline's advice is, if you are planning on buying artwork of any significant value, do your homework or bring along an expert before laying out the money. *Brenda Collins* 

Pauline stated the most serious art fraud involves cultural objects that are "stolen" from third-world countries and purchased by European museums, the biggest culprits being France, Great Britain, and Germany. Apparently, Canada is one of only five countries attempting to return said objects in their possession to the countries of origin. This struck me as a bit odd. If you checked out the Royal Ontario Museum lately, you'd have found it has a heck of a lot of Egyptian, European, and South American artifacts on permanent display. So what exactly are they planning to give back? Janet Hunter

Pauline advised that a work of art be authenticated, and told us that you can pay to have

the Canadian Conservation Institute in Ottawa do a pigment analysis on a painting, which will tell you if it was painted when it was supposed to have been. If found to be a forgery, you may find yourself helping the RCMP set up a sting to catch the crook. Pauline also clarified the difference between a print, which is something the artist does; a reproduction, which is mechanically made; and a copy, which is done as the original artist did it, for example, using oil paint. Nina Evashkevich

# **Writing Tight**

by Penny Grey

Writers agree that it's harder to write few good words than to write many bad ones. When it's time to prune, William Brohaugh (Write Tight) identifies 16 types of "wordweeds" to look for: the redundant; the already understood; the empty; the evasive (intentional or otherwise); the passive; the weak, the noncommittal, and the hesitant; the affected; the circuitous; the self-indulgent; the overkill: the inflated and the deflated; the invisible and therefore unnecessary; the imprecise; the clever and the show-offy; the nonsensical; the beautiful. So, get pruning!



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### **Presentation Review**

Lanny Fritz, University of Calgary Security and Safety Sheriff, spoke to MWI November 6, 2003.

Lanny Fritz says his 29 years on the Calgary police force was an eye-opener for a boy who grew up in small-town Saskatchewan. He joined the force in 1969, at 19 years old, and began by walking the beat. He then spent two years in a patrol car, moved on to more serious details from there, and later worked in race relations. In Lanny's day, the force hired youths and moulded them to the profession. Today, new recruits average 26 years of age and come from such backgrounds as science, teaching, and construction, making today's force, Lanny believes, better equipped to serve a diverse society. Susan Calder Arnold

In today's digital revolution, don't expect your perp to get away with murder simply by stealing surveillance videotape. Most modern security systems now use DVRs (digital video recorders), like those at the University of Calgary. At the U of C, the system is monitored by an officer 24 hours a day, and even if your perp could smoke him out, drug him, or otherwise "eliminate" him, there is no tape to steal, erase, or burn. As writers, we must be a bit more creative in foiling modern surveillance systems. Pamela McDowell

Lanny Fritz started out as a beat cop, before radios, and remembers having to call in using a call box, so his experience as a police officer and with University security was both wide ranging and informative. One thing I learned was that confidential informants are registered within the unit, to prevent them from playing both sides. Another was that digital security cameras are now being used, so adding a loop to cover covert activity is not possible. Finally, I learned that G-8 agitators were kept in line with counter-agitators who were really policemen a great idea that worked. Grace Panko

A cold Thursday night and the last thing I felt like doing was going to a meeting, but the Ink guest speaker made me

glad I had ventured out. Mr. Fritz surprised me—he both entertained and educated me. And most of all, he impressed me with his commitment to his profession, his generous attitude toward people, his loyalty to Calgarians, and his treasure trove of experiences. Like so many people who have lived life to the fullest, he had great stories to share. It's always a treat to listen to a speaker who so obviously loves what he does.

Fiona Pinnell

Lanny Fritz, University of Calgary's Security and Safety Sheriff started out walking "the beat" of downtown Calgary in 1969. He's experienced the many facets of policing, including being part of the Race Relations Unit, the Integrated Intelligence Unit policing the trucking industry, as well as Criminal Intelligence prior to and during the 1988 Olympics in Calgary. Since his current expertise is now security, his advice on mounting covert cameras in a sprinkler head or air intake vent was well received.

Bernie Visotto



**Mystery Writers Ink** 

Volume No. 2 Issue No. 2

December 2003

#### **Mystery Writers Ink Society**

223 - 12th Avenue SW Calgary, Alberta T2R 0G9 Canada

#### **Mission Statement**

Mystery Writers Ink shall support writers of mystery fiction by providing networking opportunities and by educating and informing writers about writing techniques, publishing, and marketing.

### Newsletter Submissions

Mystery Press is published quarterly, in September, December, March, and June. Original material only please. Articles may not be reprinted without permission of the authors. MWI reserves the right to edit submissions.

The deadline for the March newsletter is Feb. 20, 2004.

Please send requests for guidelines, as well as submissions, to Penny Grey at pegrey@greygroup.ca.

### **Program Schedule**

#### **Thursday, Dec. 11, 2003**

Old Y Centre 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. New Member Orientation Topics: Manuscript format, the query letter, the synopsis. Coffee and dessert. Everyone is welcome!

### Thursday, Jan. 8, 2004

Old Y Centre 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Topic: An ex-RCMP officer talks about past cases.

### Other Thursdays in 2004

Old Y Centre 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Topics:

- \* Unravelling the Mystery: presentation by Mahrie Glab, who teaches writing workshops in Edmonton.
- \* A Calgary Police Services presentation.

### Lug a Mug

We don't have a storage area at our meeting place, so please bring your own coffee cup.
Styrofoam cups are available to the forgetful!

Enjoy a bottomless cup of coffee for only 25 cents!

#### **Mystery Writers Ink Society**

#### 2003-2004 Board of Directors:

President Suzanne Stengl
Vice President Cathy Welburn
Secretary Sherry McEwen
Treasurer Donna Wickens
Membership Janet Hunter
Facilities Mgmt Anne Jayne
Library Sherile Reilly
Program Sherile Reilly
Public Relations Donna Tunney

#### **Newsletter:**

Editor Penny Grey
Layout/Design Penny Grey
Distribution Sharon Wildwind
Database Mgr Brenda Collins

#### Memberships:

Memberships are accepted between Sept 1 and Oct 31 of each year.

Published authors and past members may join at any time.

#### Full membership:

\$35, which includes newsletter

#### Associate membership:

\$45, which includes newsletter

**Newsletter only:** \$10

#### **Got Questions?**

Drop us a line:

mysterywritersink@hotmail.com